
AMENDED APRIL 5, 2022 1 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN – MEETING MINUTES 2 

March 22, 2022 3 

 4 

CALL TO ORDER – Chairman Haverty called the meeting to order at approximately 6:30 pm. 5 

 6 

PRESENT:      Jaie Bergeron, Jason Croteau, Robert Haverty, Charlene Takesian, Doug Viger 7 

   8 

 9 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 10 

 11 

Chairman Haverty noted that as it was the first meeting of current session and there was the need to elect a 12 

new chair and new vice chair. 13 

 14 

MOTION: (Bergeron/Takesian) To make Bob Haverty chair. 15 

 16 

VOTE: (5-0-0) The motion carried. 17 

 18 

 19 

MOTION: (Viger/Haverty) To appoint Jaie Bergeron as vice chairman. 20 

 21 

VOTE: (5-0-0) The motion carried. 22 

 23 

 24 

Chairman Haverty welcomed Selectwoman Takesian and Selectman Croteau. 25 

 26 

 27 

MINUTES REVIEW: 28 

 29 

March 1, 2022 30 

 31 

MOTION: ( Viger/Bergeron) To approve the March 1, 2022 meeting minutes as written. 32 

  33 

VOTE: (3-0-2) The motion carried.  (Mr. Croteau and Ms. Takesian abstained.)  34 

 35 

 36 

 37 

OPEN FORUM: 38 

 39 

No one came forward to address the board in open forum. 40 

 41 

 42 

APPOINTMENTS: 43 

 44 

CARL DUBAY/DUBAY GROUP REQUEST FOR THE APPROVAL OF TWO BUILDING 45 

PERMITS ON KEN’S WAY. 46 

 47 

 48 

Bill Latendre, M&B Investments, was present for Carl Dubay.  He explained they had ZBA approval, 49 

Planning Board approval and state subdivision approval.   50 

 51 



 BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING – March 22, 2022 

 Page 2 

 

Chairman Haverty confirmed Ken’s Way is a private road.  He explained that building permits for a private 52 

way require BOS approval.  Chairman Haverty confirmed it is for 2 single family house lots and they have 53 

worked out all of the house numbers for planning.  Mr. Latendre said they have worked with the police and 54 

fire departments on it as well. 55 

 56 

Mr. Viger asked if the driveway/road is intended to be a town road at some point or stay a private drive.  57 

Mr. Latendre said it was private.  He explained the town attorney and their attorney have put together a 58 

road agreement and there is an indemnification clause that there will be no responsibility from the town for 59 

the road. 60 

 61 

 62 

 63 

MOTION:  (Croteau/Viger) For the approval of two building permits on Ken’s Way. 64 

 65 

VOTE:   (5-0-0) The motion carried. 66 

 67 

 68 

**Agenda items were taken out of order as the board was too early for the next appointment.** 69 

 70 

DISCUSSION 71 

 72 

RESIGNATION OF TOWN ADMINISTRATOR BRIAN MCCARTHY. 73 

 74 

Chairman Haverty explained he was in receipt of a letter from Brian McCarthy, Town Administrator, dated 75 

March 8, for resignation as town administrator.  Chairman Haverty read the letter, which stated his last day 76 

would be Friday, April 8, 2022. 77 

 78 

Chairman Haverty told they board they need a motion and vote to accept the resignation 79 

 80 

MOTION:  (Takesian/Bergeron) To accept Mr. McCarthy’s resignation 81 

 82 

   (5-0-0) The motion carried. 83 

 84 

 85 

Mr. Viger asked if there was any value in paying Mr. McCarthy out and relieving him of his duties 86 

immediately. 87 

 88 

Chairman Haverty explained that this has been done in the past with other resignations.  Once things are in 89 

order, there has been precedence to have an orderly transition where the person stays remote/available and 90 

then there is transition to the new plan. 91 

 92 

Ms. Takesian asked what the plan would be, etc. 93 

 94 

Chairman Haverty explained it will fall under the non-public for tonight.  There are a number of options 95 

the board can consider.   96 

 97 

Ms. Takesian asked what the benefit was to having Mr. McCarthy leave now. 98 

 99 

Mr. Viger said there is perhaps no benefit.  He felt the infrastructure created could sustain.   100 

 101 

Ms. Takesian asked what the flip side would be. 102 



 BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING – March 22, 2022 

 Page 3 

 

 103 

Chairman Haverty said he doesn’t see an issue with “softly” parting with Mr. McCarthy.  He noted Mr. 104 

McCarthy has been dealing with a lot and might be in a place where the town could let him settle into his 105 

new chapter in his life.  106 

 107 

Mr. Bergeron said he believed there were three other employees the same thing was done for. 108 

 109 

Chairman Haverty explained Mr. McCarthy will be compensated.  He recommended a soft resignation 110 

through April 8 and allow him to step aside and the town to consider the contingencies and implement 111 

something right away.  Chairman Haverty said he felt it was a good idea with the start of a new board. 112 

 113 

Mr. Croteau agreed with letting him go softly. 114 

 115 

Mr. Bergeron confirmed with the board that there wasn’t the need for an actual vote, just a consensus from 116 

the board. 117 

 118 

Mr. Viger noted that Mr. McCarthy would still be available for informational purposes. 119 

 120 

Mr. Croteau asked if he would still have access to his office, which Chairman Haverty said he would request 121 

that Mr. McCarthy remain remote.  He noted there would be talk of the new contingency and the resource 122 

would take over the day to day, instead of trying to figure out who people go to.  Mr. McCarthy would be 123 

an advisor to the new contingency.   124 

 125 

Chairman Haverty said he would reach out to Mr. McCarthy to let him know.  He thanked him for his years 126 

of service.  He noted his opinion was that Mr. McCarthy had done well in his role and wished him the best. 127 

 128 

 129 

BOS COMMITTEES 130 

 131 

Chairman Haverty explained that with the start of a new session, they look at who is assigned to which 132 

committees.  He read through the committees, noting there were vacancies in the agricultural committee, 133 

CIP, NRPC, Community Coalition, and Planning Board.  Chairman Haverty said committees can be 134 

shuffled as well.  He asked the board members to look over their packets and email him regarding interest 135 

in committees.  He said votes will be taken and assignments made at the next meeting.  He did note that the 136 

Planning Board is coterminous with the term of the selectman. 137 

 138 

Ms. Takesian asked if they would consider keeping the solar committee to explore the panels in a place 139 

other than the roof.  Chairman Haverty said Ms. Takesian could ask for the sustainment of that committee 140 

if she had interest and asked her to email him in regard to this. 141 

 142 

 143 

SELECTMEN/TOWN ADMINSTRATOR REPORTS 144 

 145 

Mr. Bergeron thanked everyone that worked the election, noting everything went smoothly. 146 

 147 

Mr. Viger no report. 148 

 149 

Chairman Haverty no report. 150 

 151 



 BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING – March 22, 2022 

 Page 4 

 

Mr. Croteau said he would like to head the OHRV committee that will be implemented.  Mr. Viger 152 

confirmed it will be a new committee.  Chairman Haverty noted they will be advertising openings and 153 

taking applications for the committee.   154 

 155 

Chairman Haverty confirmed with Mr. Bergeron the makeup would forestry and conservation.  Mr. 156 

Bergeron said he would add fire and police.  There was discussion on how many citizens the board would 157 

be comprised it.  Mr. Viger suggested they plan the demographics and post the opening after next week’s 158 

meeting, which Chairman Haverty agreed. 159 

 160 

Ms. Takesian explained that Community Spirt does Concerts on the Village Green in the summer and 161 

lights on the Village Green in the winter.  She explained they seem to be having trouble with the plugs. And 162 

was looking for direction on where to go to solve the issue.  She described there was an issue with a band 163 

and the plugs, and the big tree was blowing GFI plug.  She said she was not sure of the issue but there needs 164 

to be a resolution. 165 

 166 

Chairman Haverty asked what the season were for the issues and asked if we were expecting anything in 167 

the next few weeks.  Ms.  Takesian said no.  Chairman Haverty suggested going to the new town 168 

administrator with the task.  Ms. Takesian noted it needs to be solved by June. 169 

 170 

Mr. Viger asked Ms. Takesian to identify the concerns in bullet points so they can notify the new town 171 

administrator. 172 

 173 

 174 

INTERVIEWS: ZBA, AGRICULTURAL COMMISSION, CONSERVATION COMMISSION, 175 

FORESTRY COMMITTEE & WATER COMMISSION CANDIDATES. 176 

 177 

Zoning Board of Adjustments (openings for two members for three years, one member for two years, one 178 

alternate for three years and one alternate for two years). 179 

 180 

There were four interviews and were taken in order of application received. 181 

 182 

John Westwood was not present. 183 

 184 

Jeff Ciara, Bush Hill Road, came forward applying for a full time, 3-year position.  He congratulated Ms. 185 

Takesian and Mr. Croteau.  He said he currently served 2 years on ZBA, which is a tough board with 186 

constant changing and lots of research.  He said he wished he had more time to research once they were 187 

given cases.  He said he learns a lot from senior members of the current board. 188 

 189 

Chairman Haverty asked what Mr. Caira’s position was for the last two years, which Mr. Caira explained 190 

he was an alternate for 2 years.  Chairman Haverty said Mr. Caira talked about getting packet earlier to do 191 

more research.  He asked Mr. Caira what things are currently done right.  Mr. Caira said a lot of things done 192 

right, the order and how everything goes is copasetic and the only thing he doesn’t believe is done right is 193 

the timing of the packets. 194 

 195 

Mr. Croteau asked when the packets are received.  Mr. Caira said four to five days before the meeting.  He 196 

noted it is probably tougher for him because he’s running a business and building a house at the same time.  197 

He said he admires zoning and land use.  Mr.  Caira said he wishes he had a week or two and wishes they 198 

could go by the sites on personal time to get a visual. 199 

 200 

 201 



 BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING – March 22, 2022 

 Page 5 

 

Sean Hamilton, 36 Blueberry Circle, came forward applying for a 2-year position or an alternate position.  202 

Chairman Haverty confirmed the openings.  Mr. Hamilton said he will apply for the 3-year position.  He 203 

explained he moved to Pelham in 2005 and it was the best move made.  He is currently on call with the fire 204 

department, has been a full-time union carpenter for about 7 years, and in construction about 30 years.  He 205 

said he loves the town and wants to be able to give back to it and have some say in the direction of the 206 

town. 207 

 208 

Chairman Haverty asked if Mr. Hamilton has sat on any committees or commission previously, which Mr.  209 

Hamilton said he has not.  Chairman Haverty noted zoning was his first committee years back. 210 

 211 

Mr. Viger asked if Mr. Hamilton was currently a full-time employee of town.  Mr. Hamilton said he was 212 

not.  He is on call with the fire department. 213 

 214 

Mr. Takesian asked what made Mr. Hamilton choose the ZBA as his first leap into the town.  Mr. Hamilton 215 

said it interests him, it seems like he would have a hand in the direction of the town and zoning, it gets him 216 

involved without being overwhelming, and allows him to give back. 217 

 218 

Mr. Croteau asked Mr. Hamilton if he could change anything in the zoning today, what would he change, 219 

if anything.  Mr. Hamilton said currently, he would keep things as they are.  He said it seems like the town 220 

is growing too fast and will have growing pains.  He said when he first moved town, he believed an acre 221 

minimum was needed to build and that has changed.  He thinks the town is growing too much. 222 

 223 

 224 

David Wing, 20 Megan Circle, came forward applying for a three-year member on the ZBA.  He 225 

congratulated Ms. Takesian and Mr. Croteau.  He said he was sorry to see Mr. McCarthy go, but happy to 226 

see him get a new position.  He explained he was an alternate for the past two years.  This is a board with 227 

a lot of in process learning.  He is looking to provide some sort of continuity.  He noted there is one senior 228 

member staying and the remaining members could use some support going forward.   229 

 230 

Chairman Haverty asked if there were some things Mr. Wing would like to see done differently.  Mr. Wing 231 

said he would also like to see the packets earlier.  He understands they have to wait until almost the end for 232 

the finalization of applications.  He would like to see more training.  He said he has attended two webinars 233 

and would like to be able to attend a few more if the state decides to do them in person. 234 

 235 

Mr. Croteau asked what Mr. Wing would change in the current zoning.  Mr. Wing said getting packets 236 

earlier, but Ms. Beauregard is limited.  He would like to see more training.  He said the planning director 237 

provides a good syllabus but having sat on the board, he would like to explore or understand things they 238 

have brought up from past. 239 

 240 

Chairman Haverty confirmed Croteau’s question.  Mr. Wing noted the town recently voted to have 241 

Accessory Dwelling Units addressed by the planning commission.  He said the issue of work force housing 242 

had a case came up before the board.  He said the state is pushing for it.  He believes it will have 243 

ramifications for town going forward and it should be looked into.  He believes that is through the regional 244 

planning commission. 245 

 246 

Mr. Bergeron asked if receiving packets digitally would not be as good as the packet in their hands in order 247 

to speed up process.  Mr. Wing said he was not sure it would make much of a difference.  He said it would 248 

be helpful and also burdensome as it’s a lot of material. 249 

 250 

 251 



 BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING – March 22, 2022 

 Page 6 

 

Chairman Haverty said the board can take action and vote tonight or can think about it and vote next week.  252 

He also noted members have to be voted in no later than next week.   253 

 254 

Mr. Bergeron supported voting now. 255 

 256 

Ms. Takesian asked what would be done about the applicant that wasn’t present. 257 

 258 

Chairman Haverty explained that he believes the two current alternates have taken some time to see how 259 

the board works and have taken some time to understand some of the regulations and law.  He noted Mr. 260 

Hamilton is eager to get involved, which is admirable, but thinks the right place for someone starting out 261 

would be an alternate.  He said he would be glad to have him in that position.  Chairman Haverty noted that 262 

alternates have the opportunity to weigh in, but they just can’t vote.  He said Mr. Westwood was also an 263 

alternate in the past and his experience could have value, but he is not present to talk to.  Chairman Haverty 264 

looking at Mr. Caira and Mr. Wing for 3-year positions, Mr. Westwood for the 2 year, and Mr. Hamilton 265 

for alternate the alternate. Mr. Bergeron said he was going to recommend the same thing. 266 

 267 

MOTION: (Croteau/Bergeron) To appoint Jeff Caira to the three-year ZBA position expiring 268 

in 2025. 269 

 270 

VOTE:   (5-0-0) The motion carried. 271 

 272 

 273 

MOTION: (Bergeron/Takesian) To appoint Mr. Wing for a three-year ZBA position for a term 274 

ending in 2025. 275 

 276 

VOTE:   (5-0-0) The motion carried. 277 

 278 

 279 

MOTION: (Bergeron/Croteau) For John Westwood to be placed into a two-year position on 280 

the ZBA for term ending in 2024. 281 

 282 

Mr. Viger discussed the value in people showing up for an interview, regardless of their past duties.  He 283 

said he feels that Mr. Hamilton being present holds a lot of credibility versus Mr. Westwood who is not 284 

present. 285 

 286 

VOTE:    (4-1-0) The motion carried.   287 

 288 

 289 

MOTION: (Bergeron/Viger) For Mr. Hamilton be placed into the alternate member position 290 

for the ZBA for a three-year term expiring in 2025. 291 

 292 

VOTE:   (5-0-0) The motion carried. 293 

 294 

There was discussion on the need to repost for the alternate positions.  Chairman Haverty said he will reach 295 

out to Melissa to get something posted.  Ms. Takesian noted there would be 4 alternate positions because 3 296 

alternates were moved onto board.  Chairman Haverty said they typically post for 10 days, take applications, 297 

and then interview. 298 

 299 

 300 

Agricultural commission (openings for 2 members for 3 years, 2 alternates for 3 years, 2 alternates for 2 301 

years). 302 



 BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING – March 22, 2022 

 Page 7 

 

 303 

There were two applicants. 304 

 305 

Jenny Larson, 132 Main Street, came forward.  She explained it is a 2-year, full time position and that’s 306 

what she was applying for.  There was a discussion that there has been a lot of confusion as a lot of members 307 

have come and gone and Ms. Larson said she is working with Melissa to get the quirks out.  She said she 308 

is applying for a 2-year position.  Chairman Haverty asked if there are any other positions open.  Ms. Larson 309 

said she and Laura had held the two two-year positions and their terms are up.  She congratulated the new 310 

board members.  She said her time on the board has been enjoyable, she has been able to meet a lot of 311 

interesting people, wonderful relationships have occurred through the commission and community 312 

members.  She has been chairwoman for the past 2 years.  They have started a successful farmers’ market, 313 

helped with different quarrels within neighbors and livestock and helped on a personal basis to stop issues 314 

and come up with solutions so no further action would be required.  They have worked intensely with state 315 

commissioner Jasper and worked with other boards.  They are in the process of doing community education 316 

programs, currently working to try and get a community garden started.  Ms. Larson said she is happy with 317 

what the commission has completed within the two years she’s been part of the commission.  There is a lot 318 

more she would like to see happen, including getting more school kids involved (public and home 319 

schooled), 4H kids, talking about grants, hoping to get grants through the state to cover community 320 

educational classes for kids and adults, expand the education, get the community and other boards and 321 

commissions more involved. 322 

 323 

Chairman Haverty noted the commission is relatively new and has accomplished a tremendous amount.  He 324 

congratulated Ms. Larson and the commission and said he is looking forward to seeing what they will 325 

accomplish. 326 

 327 

Ms. Takesian concurred they have done a great job.  She said it’s good to have the farmers’ market back 328 

and she can appreciate the amount of work it is.  She said Ms. Larson mentioned there is a lot of turnovers 329 

on the commission and asked what could be done to resolve that.  Ms. Larson said what happens with 330 

commission and committees as a whole is people’s hearts are in a good place, but they don’t understand 331 

the time and effort needed.  She said it can get overwhelming and in general, they need to have the time, 332 

effort, want and drive to be part and life can get in the way.  Ms. Larson doesn’t feel there’s anything the 333 

BOS could do to make people stay. 334 

 335 

Chairman Haverty confirmed there are two spots for two years.  Ms. Larson said she recommends Laura to 336 

return.  She is not here tonight but believes she will be present next week, as she has another meeting 337 

tonight.  Chairman Haverty asked her to reach out to Melissa and clear up what the roster looks like and 338 

expirations. 339 

 340 

MOTION: (Bergeron/Takesian) To appoint Jenny Larson to the Agricultural Commission for 341 

a term of two years.   342 

 343 

VOTE:   (5-0-0) The motion carried. 344 

 345 

 346 

MOTION: (Takesian/Bergeron) To appoint Laura Spottiswood to the Agricultural 347 

Commission for a period of two years for a term ending in 2024. 348 

 349 

VOTE:   (4-1-0) The motion carried. 350 

  351 

 352 

 353 



 BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING – March 22, 2022 

 Page 8 

 

Conservation commission (openings for 1 member for 3 years, 1 member for 3 years, 1 alternate for 3 354 

years, 1 alternate for 1 year, a total of 4 open positions). 355 

 356 

There are 3 applications. 357 

 358 

Mike Gendreau, 9 Harley Road, came forward applying for a 3-year, full time position.  He said he has 359 

been on the committee for several years.  There were growing pains in the beginning.  He became vice 360 

chair, has worked closely with Mr. Gagnon, the current chairman.  He realized quickly how the majority of 361 

the town speaks loudly in regard to trying to control growth.   They have acquired up to 2,000 acres of land.  362 

The last couple years been pretty exciting with giant additions to conservation.  He said when he first joined, 363 

they didn’t have a full board but have had a full board for several years.  Mr. Gendreau said they all work 364 

pretty well together.  They all have their own passions.  He said his personal passion is connectivity.  He is 365 

an avid snowmobiler and likes to hike.  He likes to work on connectivity from land purchases and 366 

landowners.  He believes currently there is approximately 50 miles over entire town, mostly connected.  367 

Mr. Gendreau feels conservation is kind of the quarterback of trying to conserve town.  They work closely 368 

with forestry and the BOS, the Planning Board, as they are a subcommittee to them.  They also work with 369 

groups like the Boarder Riders, etc. 370 

 371 

Chairman Haverty asked if appointed, what Mr. Gendreau wants to work on and do better.  Mr. Gendreau 372 

said when he first started, he had younger children and it took him a while to understand it.  His passion is 373 

still connectivity.  There still a lot of spots that take years to acquire and accomplish.  If he can, he’d like 374 

to get more involved with trying to work with homeowners and preserve the town as best they can.  375 

Chairman Haverty how many total years he’s served on the board.  Mr. Gendreau said he didn’t have the 376 

exact number in front of him, but it has been well over 5. 377 

 378 

Ken Stanvick, 5 Birch Lane, came forward applying for a full time, 3-year position.  He said he started as 379 

an alternate and moved into a full time, voting position.  He has been on the commission approximately 4 380 

years.  Mr. Stanvick said he brings the perspective of his professional career in global regulatory compliance 381 

for chemicals.  They are trying to protect prime wetlands.  The town’s water comes from the ground, and 382 

we need to be cautious of chemicals.  His concern is once WCDs are gone, they’re gone.  He said he sees 383 

a lot of cases where homeowners encroach WCDs, and once they gone, they aren’t getting put back.  They 384 

are a big buffer for the water supply.  He explained he and his and kids are avid sportsman.  It is important 385 

to have open land for character of town.  He said in regard to what he could change, currently the   386 

Conservation Commission makes recommendations.  Mr. Stanvick thinks it would be great if they could 387 

have a bigger say in what happens as their recommendations often get overruled.  He often feels listening 388 

isn’t as inclusive as it should be.  His goal is to look at things from a different angle when considering 389 

overruling. 390 

 391 

Chairman Haverty asked Mr. Stanvick if there’s anything he’d like to see done differently.  Mr. Stanvick 392 

said he’d like to see them have a bigger say in what happens in the town.  They came made 393 

recommendations but don’t have the next level of ability to say no. can recommend. 394 

 395 

Ms. Takesian asked if the commission governed by RSA or state laws in regard to them being able to have 396 

a bigger say.  Mr. Stanvick said it’s a state laws, as he understands it.  He said he has read the charter and 397 

it leads him to believe that’s how it is. 398 

 399 

Kara Kubit, 125 Main Street, came forward applying for an alternate member position.  Chairman Haverty 400 

confirmed Ms. Kubit has been an alternate for the last 3 years.  Ms. Kubit said she came in out of interest 401 

for what the committee does.  She said she is not very educated in the rules or laws but did it out of interest.  402 

She said she has learned a lot over the past 3 years.  Karen and Paul have taught her a lot.  She is trying to 403 



 BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING – March 22, 2022 

 Page 9 

 

build her knowledge and education of the commission and what it does and the benefits for the town.  She 404 

is trying to become better educated before trying to become a full-time member. 405 

 406 

Chairman Haverty asked how she approaches her desire to be involved in the commission.  Ms. Kubit said 407 

she enjoys outdoor recreational activities, she is a business owner in town, and it is important for her to see 408 

the preservation of land in town, the trails that are built.  It is important for her to gain more knowledge and 409 

get involved in the town.  Chairman Haverty confirmed her interest was more on the recreation side than 410 

trying to control the rural character and development of the town.  Ms. Kubit said her original interest was 411 

knowing about trails, then learning about how acquisitions are done.  She said she is in a learning phase 412 

and has learned a lot over the past 3 years.  She is trying to learn more to become a more active and 413 

contributing member.  Chairman Haverty confirmed Ms. Kubit’s interested in the 3-year alternate position, 414 

which Ms. Kubit confirmed as she has done the 3-year position in the past. 415 

 416 

MOTION: (Viger/Bergeron) To appoint Kara Kubit to the Conservation Commission for the 417 

three-year alternate position, term expiring in 2025.  418 

 419 

VOTE:   (5-0-0) The motion carried. 420 

 421 

 422 

MOTION: (Takesian/Croteau) For Mr. Mike Gendreau for a 3-year, full time position on the 423 

Conservation Commission, term ending in 2025.  424 

 425 

VOTE:   (5-0-0) The motion carried. 426 

 427 

 428 

MOTION: (Viger/Bergeron) For Mr. Kenneth Stanvick for a three-year, full-time position on 429 

the Conservation Commission, term ending in 2025. 430 

 431 

VOTE:   (5-0-0) The motion carried. 432 

 433 

 434 

Mr. Viger asked that all appointed check in with the town clerk to get sworn in. 435 

 436 

 437 

Chairman Haverty noted there is still 1 alternate position for 1 year that is unfilled, and they need to repost. 438 

 439 

 440 

Forestry (one year position for a 3-year term). 441 

 442 

Mr. Paul Gagnon was the only applicant for the only position. 443 

 444 

Mr. Bob Lamoureux came forward stating Mr. Gagnon couldn’t make it tonight and he wanted to make 445 

sure Mr. Gagnon’s application was all set. 446 

 447 

MOTION:    (Viger/Bergeron) To appoint Mr. Gagnon to a three-year term expiring in 2025.   448 

 449 

VOTE:   (5-0-0) The motion carried. 450 

 451 

 452 

Mr. Viger said that Mr. Gagnon has a long history of doing what’s right for the town and he felt his interview 453 

was not necessary, which Chairman Haverty agreed. 454 



 BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING – March 22, 2022 

 Page 10 

 

 455 

 456 

Water Commission (openings for five members for three years). 457 

 458 

Scott Winn, 4 William Drive, came forward applying for any position on the water commission.  He said 459 

he has lived in town for a year and a half.  Mr. Winn works for the state of Massachusetts for the 460 

Massachusetts Water Research Authority and has been involved with many major projects from the 461 

establishment of the authority up.  He is currently in charge of the Metro Meter Maintenance Division, sets 462 

the rates for the water and wastewater of Greater Boston, which installs, calibrates, and pulls data from the 463 

meters.  Mr. Winn said he started out as a mechanic and has worked his way up.  He is currently working 464 

on his master’s in Public Policy with an environmental application.  He wants to be involved in town 465 

 466 

Chairman Haverty said we are always looking for volunteers in a vast array of capacities and the town has 467 

multiple vacancies open. 468 

 469 

Mr. Winn noted he is two years from retirement.  His grandchildren will grow up here.  He said he loves 470 

the town and wants to be involved and help the community he lives in. 471 

 472 

Mr. Viger mentioned that Mr. Winn brings a level of experience to the position that Mr. Viger doesn’t think 473 

we’ve seen before. 474 

 475 

MOTION: (Bergeron/Viger) For Scott Winn to be appointed to a three-year term, expiring in 476 

2025, to the Water Commission. 477 

 478 

VOTE:   (5-0-0) The motion carried. 479 

 480 

 481 

BRIAN JOHNSON/PARKS AND RECREATION: GRANT APPLICATION: 482 

 483 

Brian Johnson, director of Parks and Recreation for the Town of Pelham, came forward.  He said they are 484 

looking to develop a kayak program for residents to kayak Beaver Brook.  He said he is present to gauge 485 

the BOS interest for developing a plan in the budget, which if approved, they will develop and present 486 

before submitting the grant application.  He explained the Land Water Conservation Fund Grant is out and 487 

April 29 is the deadline to file intent to fill out the grant.  Mr. Johnson said he wanted to make sure the 488 

board was interested in pursuing the grant.  He explained the grant is a 50/50 matching grant.  He believes 489 

it fits nicely with the statewide Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan.  Mr. Johnson noted there were 490 

pictures in the BOS packets.  He was joined by Al Steward.  Mr. Johnson said Mr. Steward brought to his 491 

attention that the town owns several parcels along Beaver Brook.  They are looking to develop kayak 492 

launches and install them on town on parcels.  Mr. Johnson said they are looking to start with a parcel on 493 

Lane Road, which was once a kayak launch and is listed on the state’s website as a launch.  He noted it 494 

needs upkeep and renovating.  They would add a picnic area and three to four parking spots.  Something 495 

similar would be done at Muldoon Park, accessible from Jefferson Road.  This would give a .86-mile trip 496 

down Beaver Brook to start.  They are looking to kayak in the spring and look for obstructions.  Mr. Johnson 497 

showed a map of town owned parcels along Beaver Brook.  They are eventually hoping to have a spot from 498 

the Pelham/Windham line to the Pelham/Dracut line.  This would be funded from the grant, a 50/50 499 

matching grant.  Mr. Johnson said he doesn’t see this as big money ticket and thinks they would submit for 500 

the $70,000 minimum grant, which would have a $35,000 match.  Mr. Johnson would look for volunteer 501 

labor to help with the project.  502 

 503 



 BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING – March 22, 2022 

 Page 11 

 

Chairman Haverty mentioned that having lived on the brook for 20 years, he knows the depth and volume 504 

can range radically depending on the time of year.  He said there will be a lot of challenges and asked 505 

whether they are able to mitigate those challenges.  Mr. Johnson said they don’t want to get into dredging, 506 

etc.  He was honest in saying that he hasn’t been out there to explore yet.  Chairman Haverty said that 507 

understanding the changing of the brook is important and encouraged exploring during a few times of the 508 

year.  He mentioned the low in August and high in April, etc.  He said they have to be prepared for people 509 

to go out in any condition and tough stretches could make it difficult.  Chairman Haverty said he is not 510 

opposed but wants them to explore a number of times throughout the year. 511 

 512 

Ms. Takesian noted she canoed down the brook in her younger days and it can be tough.  She also said her 513 

understanding is that kayaks sit higher in water.  Mr. Johnson said the weight of the person, etc. comes into 514 

play.  He was honest that he hasn’t been out there in August and there may be times where stretches are too 515 

low.  He mentioned that they may be able post in kiosks when issues arise. 516 

 517 

Chairman Haverty said the postings may be a good way to approach advisories. 518 

 519 

Mr. Viger mentioned he was less concerned about the water level and more concerned about the parking 520 

areas that would be created.  He feels there is a need to look at the parking spots moving forward.  He 521 

suggested going for the grant and then explore the parking areas. 522 

 523 

Mr. Johnson said he was thinking maybe an area like the current one at Gumpus where residents would 524 

apply for permits for a specific day. 525 

 526 

Chairman Haverty confirmed that Mr. Johnson is recommending they do the study and then come back to 527 

the board recommending “X” and the need to apply for the grant.  He confirmed there would be a place 528 

where they would bring the information back to the board for the board to understand the magnitude of 529 

work needed. 530 

 531 

Mr. Johnson said the intent letter is due April 29, but it is not binding.  They might go out exploring and 532 

find that it is a terrible idea. 533 

 534 

Mr. Bergeron was in support of going for the grant.  He mentioned he has personally kayaked down Beaver 535 

Brook.  He feels the biggest trouble will be clearing debris.  He thinks people know how it changes with 536 

the seasons.  He feels the biggest trouble is with obstructions. 537 

 538 

Mr. Johnson mentioned post the warnings, etc. 539 

 540 

Ms. Takesian noted her points were already brought up.  She thinks it’s a great idea and should be pursued. 541 

 542 

Mr. Croteau asked if it was a one-time grant, and this year is the only change to get it.  Mr. Johnson said it 543 

comes in every couple of years.  He noted the grant has been very good to the town of Pelham, mentioning 544 

Muldoon Park was essentially built with LWCS money, as well as the fields at Raymond Park.  Mr. Croteau 545 

questioned who would be responsible after the obstructions are cleared the first time.  Mr. Johns said it 546 

would be Parks and Rec.  Mr. Croteau said he think it’s a great idea but a hit or miss. 547 

 548 

Mr. Johnson mentioned again that they may get out there and find out it’s not something they can 549 

accomplish.  He said he wanted to make sure the board was in favor before he went exploring. 550 

 551 

Chairman Haverty said there is consensus from the board, and they didn’t need a vote. 552 

 553 



 BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING – March 22, 2022 

 Page 12 

 

Al Steward said if this ends up being positive and they can accomplish it, he would like to see if the was 554 

any way to work with selectmen and conservation to make a move on the Dire property.  The town is about 555 

to put in an aqueduct to relieve pressure on the bridge.  He said Dennis Hogan worked closely and walked 556 

Beaver Brook to Willow Street.  Mr. Steward said they would ultimately like to be able to create Bill 557 

McDevitt Trail around the block from Old Bridge Street to Willow Street to March and back, a 3-mile circle 558 

in town.  This would allow for boardwalks and observation decks to see wildlife.  He noted this is a longer-559 

term plan.  He is not sure how it would integrate but believes they can be successful on both.  Mr. Steward 560 

said he would look for the select people’s support.  He noted he is unsure where the funding would come 561 

from or the price or a way to tie the two together but noted it would be a great place for a kayak launch and 562 

picnic area.  He said there are three major areas including one by the industrial park, which is 3 acres the 563 

town owns, the spot on Lane Road. 564 

 565 

Mr. Johnson noted he brought a map of that project as well.  He said he talked to Mr. Steward about keeping 566 

the two separate since it’s a much larger price tag.  He said they can turn in two applications.  He noted 567 

they are asking $499,000 for the property, which would have a $250,000 match.  Conservation would be 568 

willing to come up with $150,000 and he believed there is $17,000 the town has aside for an easement.  He 569 

said he spoke with the park’s person in charge of LWCF grants who liked the idea but said they can’t just 570 

acquire land.  It has to be part of the grant to make it recreational use.  He said he would keep the two 571 

separate.  He showed a map of the property and the loop but noted there is shortfall of funding on that part 572 

of project. 573 

 574 

Ms. Takesian asked if the Dire property was subdividable.  She asked if they could sell the house separate 575 

to cover some of the money.  Mr. Steward said there are 10 acres with approximately 7 acres of it being 576 

wetlands.  He said he was unsure if the frontage qualifies or not.  Mr. Steward said there is more than 577 

enough room for parking, access to trail and access to water and it’s a viable lot.  He said he would be 578 

happy to go look at the property to answer more accurately. 579 

 580 

Mr. Viger confirmed they are talking about two totally different items.  Mr. Johnson said they would be 581 

separate the grants.  It ties in but are two totally separate items.  It would be two separate applications. 582 

 583 

Chairman Haverty said the consensus is yes on the first item.  They should go explore with kayaks.  Mr. 584 

Johnson said he would come back to the board with a plan and a budget.  Chairman Haverty said that on 585 

the second piece, the board needs more information and isn’t ready to make a decision.  Mr. Steward said 586 

he wanted to bring it up and it would be a part of the plan they could integrate.  Chairman Haverty said they 587 

should have more conversations about it but there would be no action by the board tonight. 588 

 589 

 590 

REQUEST FOR NON-PUBLIC SESSION 591 

 592 

MOTION:  (Bergeron/Viger) Request for a non-public session per RSA 91-A:3, II, (A). 593 

 594 

ROLL CALL VOTE:   595 

 Mr. Croteau - yes 596 

 Mr. Takesian – yes 597 

 Mr. Viger – yes 598 

 Mr. Bergeron - yes 599 

 Mr. Haverty- yes 600 

  601 

 (5-0-0) The motion carried. 602 

 603 



 BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING – March 22, 2022 

 Page 13 

 

It was noted that when the Board returned, after the non-public session, the Board would not take any other 604 

action publicly, except to seal the minutes of the non-public session and to adjourn the meeting.  The Board 605 

entered a non-public session at approximately 8:12 pm. 606 

 607 

ADJOURNMENT 608 

 609 

 610 

Respectfully submitted,  611 

Jill Atkinson 612 

Recording Secretary   613 

 614 

 615 


